
 
 

 

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 
10 FRONT STREET • EXETER, NH • 03833-3792 • (603) 778-0591 •FAX 772-4709 

www.exeternh.gov 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
EXETER CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

 

Monthly Meeting 
 

The Exeter Conservation Commission will meet in the Nowak Room, Exeter Town Offices 
at 10 Front Street, Exeter on Tuesday, December 5th, 2017 at 7:00 P.M. 

 
 
Call to Order: 

1. Introduction of Members Present       
2. Public Comment 

 
Action Items  

1. A Wetland/Shoreland Conditional Use Permit application for a proposed multi-tenant Light 
Industry/Distribution Facility at 24 Continental Drive (Tax Map 56 Lot 3). 

2. Committee Reports   
a. Treasurer’s Report 
b. Property Management 

i. End of Year Expenses 
c. Trails  
d. Outreach  

i. Barry Conservation Camp Contest Winner Selection 
e. CC Representatives Report on Other Committees  

i. Fertilizer Amendment 
 

3. Approval of Minutes: November 14th Meeting  
4. Other Business:   
5. Next Meeting: Date Scheduled (1/9/18), Submission Deadline (12/29/17)  

 
 Non Public Session  

Non public session pursuant to RSA 91-A:3, II (d) for the consideration of the 
acquisition, sale, or lease of real or personal property 
 
 

Bill Campbell, Chair  
Exeter Conservation Commission 
December 1st, 2017 Exeter Town Office, Exeter Public Library, and Town Departments.  

 

http://www.exeternh.gov/


TOWN OF EXETER 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT MEMORANDUM 

Date:  December 1, 2017 
To:  Conservation Commission Board Members 
From:  Kristen Murphy, Natural Resource Planner 
Subject:  December 5th Conservation Commission Meeting  
 
1. Garrison Glen, LLC, 24 Continental Drive, Tax Map Parcel #56-3.1 
 
The applicant has submitted a Shoreland and Wetland conditional use permit for construction of a multi-
tenant light industry/distribution facility.  A wetland application has not yet been submitted for this 
project so it will need to come back to you at a future meeting. 
 
By way of orientation, this parcel abuts the Little River Conservation Area just east of the footbridge. 
There is a 10’ pedestrian easement that was granted during the subdivision of this site between this parcel 
and the parcel to the north.   
 

1) The packet includes the response to my technical review comments.  All were adequately 
addressed with two outstanding items.  I have drafted a potential condition you could recommend 
for the first one, should you agree.  The need for one regarding the thin area between the SW 
corner of this parcel and the Little River area would be clarified during a site walk so I have not 
included a condition for this comment. 

 
2) The 10’ pedestrian easement identified on recorded plan D-26568, be added to the proposed 

conditions plan until such time the easement is relocated to a location mutually agreeable to the 
applicant and the Conservation Commission.   
 

Proposed Motion: 
• I move to make a recommendation to the Planning board that the Commission has  

� NO OBJECTION  
� NO OBJECTION WITH THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS   
� RECOMMENDS DENIAL FOR THE FOLLOWING REASONS  

to the granting of a Wetland and Shoreland conditional use permit for PB Case 17-29 for a 30,000 s.f. 
office/industrial warehouse at Tax Map Parcel #47-1-3 and 47-1-4, as presented. 

 
2. End of Year Expenses 
Should we not obtain a camper to sponsor, there are two signs we have the designs for but have not yet 
approved funding for printing.  Both would be 12”x18” 1” PVC full color signs mounted on a post like 
the ones in the interior of the forest.  One is for the skate park end of the Morrissette property.  The 
second is for the Garrison Lane entrance to the Little River Conservation Area.   

Cost:  Not to exceed $250, Conservation Land Admin. 























































































2.2.30.  Fertilizer:  Any substance containing one or more recognized plant nutrients 
which is are designed for use in promoting plant growth such as nitrogen, 
phosphorus and or potassium.  Fertilizer as defined shall not include vegetable 
compost, lime, limestone, wood ashes, or any nitrogen-free horticultural medium 
(e.g. vermiculite).  The following may be applied without restriction: nitrogen-
free soil-building products such as molasses, humic acid, kelp, soil biological 
stimulants, secondary macro-nutrients, micronutrients, and biological 
inoculums.  

9.2 AQUIFER PROTECTION DISTRICT ORDINANCE 

9.2.3. K.  Prohibited Uses:   
12. The use of fertilizer as defined in 2.2.30, with the exception of organic products and 
compost, which can be applied at a rate of ½ cu. yard per 1,000 ft2 (22 cu. yds./acre), 
not to exceed 2 lb. N/1,000ft2 per year, provided it is applied in a location that is 
greater than 25’ from surface water or from a storm drain which drains to surface 
water. 

a. Per the intent of this ordinance, this prohibition may be waived by the Planning 
Board to supplement landscape restoration or the establishment of new 
landscaping. Applicants shall provide written justification and a fertilizer 
management plan, and identify specific location(s) within the property where 
the request applies.  Waivers granted will provide for temporary allowance, not 
to exceed one year. 
  

b. This prohibition may be waived by the Planning Board for heavy use turf (i.e., 
athletic fields and golf courses) for a period of 2 years, to accommodate a 
transition period to organic products. A fertilizer management plan shall be 
submitted that includes the following: 

i. The use of Best Management Practices to limit the potential 
for nutrient runoff or groundwater infiltration.  

ii. Limitation of nutrient application to a synthetic/organic 
fertilizer blend or “bridge” product.  This blend must contain at 
least 50% organically derived plant nutrients, to facilitate the 
building of healthy soils. 

iii.  Limitation of annual maximum application to 2.5 lb/1000 ft2. 
 
 
 



9.3 EXETER SHORELAND PROTECTION DISTRICT 

9.3.4. F.  Prohibited Uses: 

12. The use of fertilizer as defined in 2.2.30, with the exception of organic products and 
compost, which can be applied at a rate of ½ cu. yard per 1,000 ft2 (22 cu. yds/acre), 
not to exceed 2 lb. N/1,000ft2 per year, provided it is applied in a location that is 
greater than 25’ from surface water or from a storm drain which drains to surface 
water. 

a. Per the intent of this ordinance, this prohibition may be waived by the 
Planning Board to supplement landscape restoration or the establishment of 
new landscaping.  Applicants shall provide written justification and a 
fertilizer management plan, and shall identify the specific locations within 
the property where the request applies.  Waivers granted will provide for 
temporary allowance, not to exceed one year.  
  

b. This prohibition may be waived by the Planning Board for heavy use turf 
(i.e., athletic fields and golf courses) for a period of 2 years, to 
accommodate a transition period to organic products. A fertilizer 
management plan shall be submitted that includes the following: 

i. The use of Best Management Practices to limit the potential for 
nutrient runoff or groundwater infiltration  

ii. Limitation of nutrient application to a synthetic/organic fertilizer 
blend or “bridge” product.  This blend must contain at least 50% 
organically derived plant nutrients, to facilitate the building of 
healthy soils. 

iii.  Limitation of annual maximum application to 2.5 lb/1000 ft2. 
 

 



1 
 

Draft Minutes 

Conservation Commission 

11/14/17 

1. Introduction to Members Present 

Present at the meeting are Kristen Murphy, Anne Surman, Sally Ward, Dave Short, Andrew Koff, 
Virginia Raub, Bill Campbell, Carlos Guindon, Todd Piskovitz, Marie Richey and Alyson Eberhardt. The 
meeting began at 7:00pm.  

2. Public Comment 

Joanne Jacob said that she did not think that there was enough markings on the trails in the town 
forests. She said that bikers often make their own trails, which can be confusing. She offered to go out 
on the trails and mark them with paint. Chairman Campbell said that it would be difficult to mark trails 
at this time of the year, because it is too cold for the paint to set. The commission thought it was a great 
idea for the spring, and suggested more detailed maps and junction signage.  

3. Action Items 
a. Property Management 

i. Property Mowing Contract Selection 

Ms. Murphy said that one of the bids was from David O’Hearn for a total of $1,825. There are 
trees that have fallen on the properties and the added cost for cutting these would make a new total of 
$2,125. They received a second bid from Dave Martin, who previously had mowed the properties in the 
past. His total would be $1,450. The budget for the mowing is about $1,800, and they had an additional 
$300 allocated for the Raynes property which is not needed, so there is enough in the budget for both.  

For the Morrisett property, if they were only to mow half the field it would cost $250 as 
opposed to $475 for the full field with Mr. O’Hearn, and it would be $300 as opposed to $525 for Mr. 
Martin. Chairman Campbell pointed out that mowing half may be beneficial  forto leave seeds on for 
wildlife.the ground.  Ms. Murphy said that generally, in the past, Mr. Martin has included the cost of 
removing any fallen trees in his price. The commission agreed to mow half of the Morrisette property. 
The total difference in the two bids would be $625.  

MOTION: Selectwoman Eberhardt moved to allocate $1,225 to mow the properties, including half of 
Morrisette. Ms. Surman seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously. 

 Ms. Raub suggested splitting the properties up among the bids, but they would have to send the 
bids back for re-submission. Ms. Murphy said she’d like to make sure that somebody had examined the 
property to determine the work necessary, to prevent additional expenses.  

ii. Property Monitoring Report 

Ms. Murphy said that with the properties that the commission had committed to monitoring 
and with the work of the two interns, all of the parcels of land should be finished in the next three 
weeks. She thought that next year they should do a summer internship because of scheduling issues and 



2 
 

the hunting season, or suggested that maybe the properties where hunting is permitted could be 
finished earlier in the year.  

iii. Raynes Listing & Signage  

Ms. Murphy said that Ms. Raub and Don Brisetledon and herself had worked together to apply 
to put the Raynes property on the state’s historical places register. The application was approved. It will 
help the conservation commission become more palatable for additional funds in the future. John 
Porter, an author with a book on historic barns in the region, asked for photos of Raynes to highlight the 
barn because of its unique silo. He’ll use the pictures in a new book.  

Kathy Norton has installed thegotten the new sign for Raynes. Public Works will install it. 
Chairman Campbell suggested that they could do a publicity article about it for Ms. Norton when she 
returns in the spring. Ms. Murphy said that the Preservation Alliance has reached out and wanted to 
feature it on their 52 Barns in 52 Weeks feature. Chairman Campbell said that the commission has been 
working with public works to fix damage to windows on the property.  

iv. Raynes Farm Stewardship Committee Member Appointment 

The committee needs to have two representatives from the conservation commission. Ms. Raub 
is one, and the commission needs to appoint another. Ms. Raub said that the committee does not meet 
often and is not a large commitment. Ms. Ward volunteered to be on the committee.  

v. Invasive Study Committee 

Mr. Guindon said that the burning bush on the southern side of the Henderson-Swasey Town 
forest has heavily invaded. Bittersweet is also a main concern because it wraps itself around trees and 
chokes them. Japanese barberry is also an issue. Mr. Short asked if they should focus on the northern 
side because the southern side is already too invaded. Mr. Guindon said that there was a lot of burning 
bush on the east side as well. He was concerned about the gasline there being the focal entry on the lot, 
and mentioned that the abandoned farmland on the neighboring property is likely the source of most of 
the seeds that have invaded. Mr. Campbell said that since burning bush comes back so quickly, we 
should focus on those areas which have not been invaded yet. The app they are using to map the 
invasive species is called IPANE. Ms. Raub asked if goats would help the burning bush. Guindon said that 
they might, but the issue is that once the burning bush is gone garlic mustard might come up.   

b. Trails 
i. Oakland Trails Project 

Mr. Short said that the trail has been moved. Another trail parallel to the highway was used as 
the entrance to the new trail. The trail was built on higher ground than before as well. There is still some 
rockwork needing to be done, but the project is about 95% done. A sign was made asking people not to 
enter the portion that was shut down. They did not need any wood for the project. Chairman Campbell 
was concerned about the treated wood from the plank bridge, which will disintegrate much slower than 
untreated wood.  Mr. Short said that the pressure treated wood will be removed. CP Lumber donated 
extra wood to replace the bridge system. 

ii. Trail Maintenance Needs 



3 
 

There are other minor projects that need to be done in some areas. Ms. Murphy said that there 
is $300 left in the budget. Mr. Short said they would need decking to make treads. They will get an 
estimate for the cost, and can store the wood at public works so that they can use it for future projects.  

MOTION: Ms. Eberhardt moved that the commission spend up to $300 for the project. Mr. Piskovitz 
seconded the motion, and it passed unanimously.  

c. Outreach 
i. Barry Conservation Camp Contest 

Mr. Koff said spoke about the essay contest for the Barry Conservation camp in Berlin, New 
Hampshire for Summer 2018. The essay is simply why you would like to attend the camp, and the 
contest is open to Exeter residents aged 10-16. It was posted on the website, Facebook, and the Exeter 
newsletter. They may reach out to schools and scouting organizations, and could ask businesses in town 
to post flyers in their windows.  

ii. NHACC Partnership Project 

Ms. Murphy said that the visited the middle school last week, and introduced wetlands and the 
importance of buffers as well as stormwater pollution to 8th graders. The students used Google Earth to 
measure the buffer size around some wetlands. They also tested water samples, and measured 
dissolved oxygen, pH, conductivity, and turbidity. They worked with the students to come up with their 
own design for a study. She thought the kids were very engaged.  

iii. ESRLAC Dues 

Ms. Murphy said that this year, the suggested dues for ERLAC are $200. Normally, $100 goes to 
ESRLAC, $630 goes to NHACC, $100 goes to the Lamprey River Watershed Association, and $100 goes to 
Southeast Land Trust for a total of $930.  The commission had only budgeted $100 for the dues, and 
agreed that they would vote on the total and look at the treasurer’s report to see if there was an 
additional $100 that could be found in the budget.  

MOTION: Ms. Raub moved to approve $100 ESRLAC, $100 for the Lamprey River Watershed Association, 
$100 for Southeast Land Trust, and $630 for NHACC respectively. Mr. Piskovitz seconded the motion, 
and it passed unanimously.  

d. CC Representatives Report on Other Committees 

This was not covered during this meeting.  

4. Approval of Minutes: October 10th Meeting 

Mr. Campbell suggested that on page 4, they change it to “open to be selected by conservation 
members as well”. He also suggested that the part about the Swasey property be deleted.  

MOTION: Ms. Raub moved to approve the minutes as amended. Ms. Richey seconded the motion, and it 
passed unanimously, with Ms. Eberhardt abstaining.  

5. Other Business 



4 
 

Mr. Piskovitz brought up a site walk on Thursday that will be a combined effort between the 
conservation commission and the planning board for Rose Farm. They will meet at 8:30am on 
Wadleighy Street. There will be another road put in to the property, and the property is complex 
with some areas clear and some covered in brush.  

Ms. Eberhardt said that the Piscataqua Region Estuaries Partnership of the EPA will have 
a conference this year (they hold one every five years), which will be on December 8th. 
Registration is required. She also brought up an event called Stories from the Field, which 
features storytellers who are citizen scientists. This event will be on the evening of December 
8th.  She also mentioned a program called coastal research volunteers, where there are 
opportunities to volunteer to collect data for coastal research. She then talked about a project 
creating a resource of sand dune plant for coastal inhabitants. 

Mr. Campbell attended the annual meeting of the NHACC where he heard two talks, one  
about considering wildlife while onwhen planning  trails, and also one on receiving grants. He 
also attended a meeting of the conservation commission roundtable, involving numerous 
different seacoast region towns. They talked about the right to know law and what constitutes a 
meeting. He said that Portsmouth has done a study on possible conservation lands. He brought 
up doing something for Pete Richardson. There is a plaque on a bench in Founder’s Park with his 
name, and he suggested writing a letter to Mr. Richardson’s wifde on behalf of the commission. 
And, he suggested naming a trail “Pete’s Path” and placing a sign on it.  

6. Next Meeting: Date Scheduled (12/5/17), Submission Deadline (11/22/17) 

MOTION: Mr. Guindon moved that the commission enter into a non-public session. Mr. Piskovitz 
seconded the motion. A roll call vote, and it passed unanimously at 8:30 pm.  

Public session reconvened at 9:05 pm. 

A motion was made to seal the minutes. A roll call vote was taken and passed unanimously.  

The meeting was adjourned at 9:10 pm.  

 

Respectfully submitted by recording secretary Samantha Cave.  

 

 

 

 

 


	Dec Meeting Memo.pdf
	Date:  December 1, 2017

	Nov 29 2017 Amendment_RED.pdf
	2.2.30.  Fertilizer:  Any substance containing one or more recognized plant nutrients which is are designed for use in promoting plant growth such as nitrogen, phosphorus and or potassium.  Fertilizer as defined shall not include vegetable compost, li...
	Article 1.
	Article 2.
	Article 3.
	Article 4.
	Article 5.
	Article 6.
	Article 7.
	Article 8.
	Article 9.
	9.1
	9.2
	9.3
	9.3.1
	9.3.2

	9.2 AQUIFER PROTECTION DISTRICT ORDINANCE
	9.2.3. K.  Prohibited Uses:

	9.3 EXETER SHORELAND PROTECTION DISTRICT
	9.3.4. F.  Prohibited Uses:
	12. The use of fertilizer as defined in 2.2.30, with the exception of organic products and compost, which can be applied at a rate of ½ cu. yard per 1,000 ft2 (22 cu. yds/acre), not to exceed 2 lb. N/1,000ft2 per year, provided it is applied in a loca...




